
AMENDED MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE PARKS AND 
RECREATION COMMISSION HELD ON TUESDAY, JANUARY 3, 2006, AT THE 
WILLOWBROOK VILLAGE HALL, 7760 QUINCY STREET, WILLOWBROOK, DUPAGE 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
 
1.  CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman Richard Cobb called the meeting to order at the hour of 7:30 p.m. 
 
2.  ROLL CALL 
 
Those present at roll call were Commissioners Laurie Landsman, Carol Lazarski, Karin Miller, 
Ronald Kanaverskis, Douglas Stetina, Sandra O’Connor, Janice Winters and Chairman Cobb. 
ABSENT: Commissioner Patricia Wagner.  Also present was Superintendent of Parks and 
Recreation Walter Righton. 
 
        A QUORUM WAS DECLARED 
 
3.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES – DECEMBER 6, 2005 
 
Commissioner Lazarski noted that Vice Chairman Doug Stetina and not Chairman Richard Cobb 
presided at the December 6, 2005 meeting.  
 
MOTION: Made by Commissioner Lazarski, seconded by O’Connor, to approve the minutes of 
the regular meeting of the Parks and Recreation Commission meeting held on December 6, 2005 
as amended. 
 
UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE    MOTION DECLARED CARRIED 
 
4.  CORRESPONDENCE 
 
There was no correspondence. 
 
5.  VISITOR’S BUSINESS 
 
Superintendent Righton noted that Village Administrator Carl Goldsmith was in attendance this 
evening. 
 
6.  REPORTS 
 

A. Recreation Program Update 
 
Superintendent Righton reported that the Fall program enrollment totals for 2005 were up from 
the previous year.  Planning has begun for the Winter/Spring programs.  Mr. Righton referred to 
the schedule for the flyers that would be going to the schools, with the first flyers going to the 
schools the morning of the meeting date. Included in the Commissioners’ packets was 
information with respect to Summer program planning. 
 
 



Page 2 
Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 
 
 

B. Special Recreation Tax 
 
Superintendent Righton reported that on December 19, 2005, the Village Board conducted a 
Truth In Taxation Public Hearing for the Special Recreation Tax. One of the residents spoke in 
support of the Village’s efforts to fund not only the Village’s continued membership in Gateway 
but also ADA related park improvements. No one spoke in opposition of the tax.  The Board 
voted to enact the tax and levy it in the amount of $63,000. 
 
7.  OLD BUSINESS 
 
 A. Holiday Party  
 
Superintendent Righton thanked the Commissioners for their efforts with regard to the Holiday 
Party. He noted it was a team effort and he received many compliments with regard to the party 
and even a twenty dollar ($20) cash donation from one of the parents in attendance. 
 
Superintendent Righton highlighted some issues that the Commission would need to discuss. The 
first issue was that one of the parents asked for their child’s gift early and he was uncomfortable 
with doing that.  Second, Mr. Righton felt that the juggler was skilled but not as polished as he 
would have liked him to be. He thought it would be better to get the entertainment from “Class 
Acts” so that backup entertainment would be available if needed. Also, Mr. Righton would like 
to book the same Santa for next year.   
 
Superintendent Righton asked if the Commission was still comfortable with giving all the 
collected food items and the additional gifts to the Hinsdale Community Services. The 
Commission felt that Hinsdale Community Services does service Willowbrook residents and 
surrounding communities rather than going into some fund where you do not know who actually 
is receiving the food and gifts. Commissioner Lazarski indicated that there was some concern 
expressed by the Director regarding the time of the delivery of the food items.  Chairman Cobb 
suggested that the Hinsdale Community Services be contacted prior to the next Holiday Party to 
determine when they would prefer the food delivered. Commissioner Stetina thought it was a 
good idea to provide a drawing of the setup for the party for the custodial staff that can be 
submitted along with the facilities contract 
 
The Commission suggested that for the next party, there should be less coffee and more hot 
chocolate. 
 
8.  NEW BUSINESS 
 
Chairman Cobb introduced Village Administrator Carl Goldsmith with regard to updating the 
Parks Commission on some projects that are going on in Willowbrook that may affect the 
Commission. 
 
Administrator Goldsmith noted that the first issue he would like to provide an update for was the 
proposed Willowbrook Town Center Project.  The Plan Commission is scheduled to conduct a 
public hearing with regard to this project on January 18. At that time they will be reviewing all 
the variations requested by the Harlem Irving Development Company and the project will be 



Page 3 
Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 
 
 

going to the Village Board some time in March for consideration with an anticipated ground 
breaking sometime in spring. 
 
Administrator Goldsmith informed the Commission that the Staff has put together the 
preliminary budget that will be going to each Committee of the Board for review at their 
meetings of January 9 including the budget that was presented by Superintendent Righton on 
behalf of the Parks Commission.  This included all the items that were requested by the 
Commission that were included in the long range financial plan document that was approved by 
the Village Board.  Mr. Goldsmith also updated the Commission on the restructuring of the 
Police Department administration and the Police Department purchase of a canine unit. 
 
Administrator Goldsmith noted that he was requested by Village President Pretzer to come 
before the Commission to discuss the status of Midway Park. He reported that the Village Board 
had discussed and supported the idea of selling Midway Park in October 2005. 
 
Commissioner Landsman asked why a decision was made without the Parks Commission. She 
felt it was disrespectful to the Commission.  Commissioner Landsman further noted that the 
Commission had asked Administrator Goldsmith and President Pretzer to come to them first and 
were told that they would. Mr. Goldsmith responded that any discussion as to how, when, where 
and why would be better served by talking to the Village Board directly. He outlined the two 
processes that could be used with regard to the sale of Village owned property. One process is by 
resolution and under that situation, the Village Board at a public meeting makes the decision to 
sell and directs their agent to sell and that is the extent of the discussion. There is no public 
notice required, there is nothing else required. The other process is through advertising in the 
local papers for three successive weeks prior to the public bid opening. The Village has to 
advertise the notice of intent to sell, publicly open bids and enter into a sales contract by 
resolution.   
 
After discussions with the Village Board, Administrator Goldsmith encouraged the Board to use 
the second process with full disclosure to the public. The first notice is tentatively scheduled to 
appear in the local papers on January 25, and subsequently February 1 and February 8 with the 
public bid opening on February 13, 2006. A decision would be made on February 13 whether the 
Village Board is accepting the bids or not.  
 
Administrator Goldsmith informed the Commission that the Midway Park property was 
appraised in the fall of the previous year.  The property contains two buildable lots in the R-1 
Zoning District.  
 
Commissioner Lazarski asked if consideration was given to the existing parking problem at 
Community Park. Mr. Goldsmith responded that the Village President is in support of insuring 
that funding for the full concession/washroom/storage building and a sum of $280,000 towards 
park improvement projects.  The remainder would likely be used to fund capital projects put off 
over the past several years and some funds put in the bank to insure financial stability for the 
Village. 
 
Commissioner Kanaverskis asked if any of the monies would go towards salaries and benefits? 
Administrator Goldsmith answered that it would not go toward any ongoing expenses rather 
toward one time capital expenses. 



Page 4 
Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 
 
 

 
Commissioner Stetina noted that in past discussions funds seen from the sale of the park would 
be put directly back either in buying other lands or property. The Parks Commission had 
recommended that it was an important concern that there is no open land and once this happens 
that would be the end of it. 
 
Superintendent Righton noted that the Board has been made well aware of the past discussions 
by the Parks Commission.  There are no minutes that indicated in the form of a motion that the 
Board approved that they would do anything more than offer adequate public notice. This was 
pointed out to the Board that, as with past Boards had indicated, there would be adequate public 
notice.  
 
Over the years, the Board and Commission first talked about expanding the Community Park and 
that wasn’t available, then looking for other sites within the Village. The Board appointed an Ad 
Hoc Committee that looked at sites throughout the Village and determined that there weren’t 
sites that were adequate in size and location to dedicate those funds. With virtually all affordable 
potential park land now gone, the next logical use of proceeds would be for capital expenses. It is 
now a matter of how much of the sale would be used for park capital projects. That is the 
direction the Staff has been given.  Those discussions made the present Board aware of the past 
discussions the Boards had. 
 
Commissioner Stetina felt that it should be reflected in the minutes that the Commission 
unanimously opposed the sale of the property. 
 
Commissioner Landsman expressed her disappointment that the Board did not come to the Parks 
Commission. 
 
Commissioner Kanaverskis noted that proceeds from a sale of Midway Park will be spent very 
quickly. That property is gone, that soccer field is gone forever and we will never get it back.  
The next time the Village needs another infusion of money what park property would they sell?  
 
Superintendent Righton noted that the difference between Midway Park and any other park is 
that since the last 15 years, Midway Park was earmarked to be sold because of its proximity to 
the Community Park.  It doesn’t speak to the loss of our green space but in terms of functionality 
that is the distinction between Midway Park and another one of the parks. 
 
Commissioner Lazarski noted that it doesn’t speak the fact that we were looking at other pieces 
of property when we talked about selling Midway, we were looking at the property on Madison 
Street that has already been developed, we were looking at property on Clarendon Hills Road 
which is now being developed, we had looked at properties that came up for sale around 
Community Park. It was going to be a trade off, if we didn’t want it across the street but if 
property comes available around Community Park, which it has several times. The most 
important one that we had missed was the one just to the west of the parking lot. That was up for 
sale and this Board chose to buy a piece of property elsewhere.  She was really concerned about 
the whittling away of our park and recreation. It shows how important the parks are to the Board. 
This Commission was set up as advocates of our parks; instead it has become a special events 
committee.  Ever since her appointment to the Commission, when they had talked about the 
selling of the park, she had advocated not selling the park because at that time all the 



Page 5 
Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 
 
 

communities around us were looking for open space to play soccer, to play football, to play all 
your field sports and they were looking for it at that time. She thinks selling our property makes 
no sense.  Our County Forest Preserve put lots of money into trying to acquire open land. There 
were grants from the state to acquire open land and because the situation that the Board has 
gotten themselves into, to sell this park is going to ruin Willowbrook’s future and parks in 
regards to parks. Commissioner Lazarski noted that she did talk to a Trustee regarding the sale 
of Midway Park and he made it very clear that no one from the Commission attends any of the 
Committee or Board meetings, which she did not think that was our position because our minutes 
supposedly went to them. Which now she heard at the last meeting, I don’t know if they don’t go 
to them or they don’t read them. Administrator Goldsmith responded that the Parks and 
Recreation Commission minutes do go to the Board. 
 
Commissioner Landsman questioned Superintendent Righton that he was asked to tell the 
Commission when the Board was expecting the sale of Midway and we waited but where does 
the buck stop? Why did we not get any notice? Administrator Goldsmith responded that the buck 
stops with President Pretzer.  
 
Commissioner Landsman asked Mr. Goldsmith if he did not think it was necessary to discuss it 
with us. Administrator Goldsmith noted that it was the direction he was given, it was a Board 
issue and when the time avails itself it would be discussed with the Commission. Several 
Commissioners expressed their disappointment that the Board did not discuss the issue with 
them and no public hearing. 
 
Administrator Goldsmith advised there is no public hearing required for the sale of property but 
there are Board meetings. As he suggested earlier, the notices are going out on the 25th, 1st and 
8th. At the Board meeting of February 13, it will be publicly discussed then when the Board 
opens the bids. Certainly, any members of the public, including the Commissioners, are welcome 
to attend the meeting to discuss this item.   
 
Commissioner Landsman asked if the Village was ever going to a referendum to get more money 
to plan a rec center or a build a rec center, that is the issue that has been set aside. The Village is 
waiting for the town center to be built and do we have to wait? Administrator Goldsmith 
responded that a report went to the General Government Committee, which is a vehicle to the 
Trustees, outlining referendum strategies, time frames, common lines, public materials that can 
be presented, and was asked to hold off on that. It is the direction of the Board not to move 
forward with a referendum. 
 
Commissioner Landsman commented that the Board is looking for an easy fix. Administrator 
Goldsmith responded that the Board is looking for ways to assist in meeting the capital needs of 
the community without going forward with the quest of a referendum for approval right now. 
Commissioner O’Connor asked what kind of non-park capital improvements would be slated 
should the park be sold? Administrator Goldsmith responded that there is a list of projects and 
programs that have not been confirmed in terms what the Board would prefer to fund. Some of 
the items include a Geographic Information System, in a special workshop there was discussion 
of purchasing another park property in town. 
 
Commissioner O’Connor asked about non-park development? 
 



Page 6 
Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 
 
 

Administrator Goldsmith responded that other items included a GIS system, equipment for the 
police department, equipment for the public works department and new technology for the 
Village in terms of record management systems, things of that nature. However, no decisions 
have been made. 
 
Commissioner Landsman asked if it was President Pretzer’s decision not to do a referendum at 
this time. 
 
Administrator Goldsmith responded that President Pretzer sets direction, obviously the Village 
Board with its attorney there, requests items to be forwarded to the Village Board for discussion.  
There has been no discussion of a referendum or proposed referendum.  Certainly, The Village 
Board is aware of that as a long term option. There are several members of the Board that want 
to wait to see how the town center does and how that affects our bottom line. 
 
Administrator Goldsmith also noted that a large percentage of the community live in multi-
family complexes and many of those have their own clubhouses, tennis courts, basketball courts, 
pools, things for which they do not need more provision of those services, the likelihood of those 
residents supporting a referendum is very slim.  
 
Commissioner O’Connor noted that we have been talking about a town center for a long time 
and to her, Burr Ridge has a fantastic facility, and for Willowbrook to put one a mile away, just 
look at the service. Commissioner Winters noted that the Burr Ridge rec center, the building they 
just built is nothing similar to what Willowbrook is proposing. They do not have a basketball 
court.  
 
Commissioner Miller thought for the basic services that we are going to offer, they are already 
offering them there and why, I know the district idea, if we really want those things and they are 
already being provided by them, why are we not part of a park district. 
 
Commissioner Landsman noted that the problem is a resident versus a non-resident unless we 
had a special field trip.  She has enrolled her children in dance classes at Westmont or Darien, 
that register residents first and sometimes her kids are shut out of the class. As a Willowbrook 
resident what do you do, do you go to private dance places which are higher but that is part of 
what she has lived through with the kids growing up. She felt that the families with little kids 
would benefit from having a rec center where you have easy access to get in classes. 
 
Commissioner Winters commented that this (the potential sale of Midway Park) was the chance 
to get something.  That is what the Board said. Administrator Goldsmith advised that the 
recreational portion of the rec center was about $8,000,000, so the sale of this land would do 
very little to bring us closer to it. Commissioner Kanaverskis asked how much the (rec center) 
property is worth. Administrator Goldsmith responded the Village bought it for $1.2 million and 
it probably is worth $1.6 million. 
 
Commissioner Lazarski expressed her concern for the residents at Community Park because of 
the parking situation. 
 
Administrator Goldsmith responded that one of the projects that Staff recommended for the 
Board to consider or fund through the proceeds of the sale would be the third set of ball field 



Page 7 
Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 
 
 

lights and the expansion of the parking lot.  We have a preliminary concept drawing that would 
give us about 45 additional spaces. 
 
Superintendent Righton noted we have 90 parking spaces now. A traffic study put the 
recommended capacity at about 130 cars. There is no way we could add a third set of lights 
without the expansion of the parking lot. The concept on the new parking lot was just to the east 
of the existing parking lot, it takes up a portion of the grass but we can still squeeze in a soccer 
field although it would be moved down into the infield dirt. It is feasible but that would give us 
another 45 spots. It would actually improve the ingress and egress because we would have an 
entrance and an exit at either end to help with the flow, because the flow at the one entrance is 
cumbersome. The parking lot expansion would improve the situation that we have over there, it 
is definitely needed. 
 
Chairman Cobb noted that they also talk about a parking lot on the other side of 75th. 
Administrator Goldsmith responded that the Village had the engineers look at that. Much of that 
land is flood plain/flood way and you can’t build on it. He also noted that they had talked about 
entering into a relationship with Hinsdale South to have them buy back spaces and we couldn’t 
do it. 
 
Commissioner O’Connor commented that from the $1.1 million, you have already slated 
$200,000 recommended to be spent directly on the park.  Administrator Goldsmith stated with 
the concession/washroom facility it would be closer to $370,000. And President Pretzer 
expressed support of the concept and sending that to the Village Board for consideration for next 
year’s budget and the year after and probably be phased in over two years. Commissioner Stetina 
asked if this was President Pretzer’s decision. Administrator Goldsmith responded it was the full 
Board’s decision. The first formal vote on it will be when the Village sells the property. 
 
Commissioner Kanaverskis commented that he did not think the Commission will be able to the 
stop the sale. He knew the Commission was all opposed to it and we should be on record that we 
are all opposed to it.  He did not know how we are going to be able to stop it; it seems as if the 
Board has got their mind set to sell this property. The Commission should try to get more than 
$300,000, maybe $500,000, toward park capital projects.  
 
Administrator Goldsmith responded it takes into account all the capital items requested under the 
long range plan with the exception of playground equipment that were included in the plans for 
2011.  That isn’t to suggest in future years you cannot put more in, come back with a new plan, 
but that takes care of all that, all but that one project, included in what the Commission sent to 
the Village President recently for approval. 
 
Chairman Cobb asked if that includes the gazebos? Administrator Goldsmith responded that it 
does include the gazebos and items such as third set of lights, parking lot, all the things in the 
Parks & Rec long range plan. 
 
Commissioner O’Connor asked if it would in a special fund, a capital improvement fund just for 
those purposes. 
 
Administrator Goldsmith responded that the Village currently has only one capital fund for all 
capital expenditures. 



Page 8 
Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 
 
 

Commissioner Lazarski commented that not only are we losing Midway Park but we are also 
losing part of the Community Park for our parking lot. 
 
Administrator Goldsmith noted that under this process there are public notices that go out to the 
papers and there is a packet of information for anyone interested to pick up and basically it is a 
general description of the property, bidder sheets. 
 
Administrator Goldsmith responded that the Village Board has the discretion to reject all the bids 
and then direct the sale through different means, or they can decide if the bids come in at a 
certain figure and it is not worth the effort to sell it at that point. Commissioner Lazarski thought 
that the Village already had somebody interested in it. Administrator Goldsmith noted that there 
may be a hundred people that might be interested in the property if they knew it was actively 
being marketed. 
 
Commissioner Lazarski asked if the Village was actively going to market it? When are the bids 
going to be open?  Administrator Goldsmith responded that the bids will be publicly opened at 
the meeting of February 13, at that point to go forward the Board will probably direct Staff to 
review the proposals or bids and make a recommendation for the meeting of the 27.  We will 
then go back to analyze it and it may not be in our best interest to accept any of them.  The 
zoning as it stands on the property would allow for two homes.  There is no chance of multi-
family unless the zoning was changed but he did not imagine the Plan Commission would 
approve of rezoning the property. 
 
Chairman Cobb commented that we are looking at doing nothing for five years otherwise other 
than running the Christmas party for the next five years. Nothing is going to happen, we will get 
a gazebo or two over the next five years and nothing is going to happen to our parks. He liked to 
see things move forward and given the fact that we have $400,000 of projects in our capital 
budget which aren’t going to happen anytime soon perhaps we can complete them sooner. 
 
Commissioners Lazarski and Landsman wanted assurances with regard to the money. Chairman 
Cobb felt that there would be assurances by the Board if the Commission went to the meetings 
and spoke up. 
 
Commissioner O’Connor commented that the assurance is to put it in a separate capital fund. 
Administrator Goldsmith agreed with that but even in doing so, fund transfers and so forth there 
are only certain monies the Village has that are earmarked specifically and it is by state statute 
and that is motor fuel tax and hotel/motel tax. Outside of that, any surplus monies can be 
transferred.  The Staff feels it seems inevitable that the Board has made a commitment to sell the 
property and he felt from the perspective of the Commission, the best is that you can be assured 
is that through Mr. Righton, himself and conversations with Gary and other Board members, he 
has pushed for you to get as much money as you can that the Board feels comfortable 
relinquishing  but also that the Commission has control over those dollars  and it’s not to say the 
Board cannot say no to project, at that point you would have to do what you believe is in the best 
interest of the parks.  That goes a long way in that the Commission can take care of its own 
issues and some of your own needs that may or may not be addressed otherwise. 
 
Chairman Cobb commented that the second set of lights are already paid off. We have sat here 
for the last three years and have done nothing. Commissioner Lazarski felt it was still better than 



Page 9 
Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 
 
 

selling the park. Chairman Cobb had no argument with that but again on assumption it is a done 
deal, then he thought the Commissioners needs to make noise to make sure that we get what Mr. 
Goldsmith has just said we could get basically our wish list taken care of next year and the year 
after, only because it may take two years to build a kitchen and bath facility. 
 
Commissioner Kanaverskis commented that it appears as if things are turning around and there is 
a surplus so with that surplus our projects should be funded.  Administrator Goldsmith responded 
that the surplus comes at the expense of not funding road maintenance out of the general fund for 
four years straight. There are needs that we have that have not been met or things that we have 
put off and I will venture to say will be brought back. 
 
Commissioner Lazarski noted that they talked about exchanging Midway Park for a park on the 
north side but not whittling away at the parks, it was an exchange. That made a lot sense; she 
could go along with that. 
 
Administrator Goldsmith commented that he would venture to say that there is not a person in 
Willowbrook who is not within a three-quarter mile of a park, whether it is our park or 
Westmont’s park or Darien’s park. 
 
Commissioner Lazarski felt that the Community Park parking is already overflowing because we 
are expanding into Community Park we put in a second set of lights, when we put in a second set 
of lights, which we did discuss this about the parking.  And We found out that we can’t park on 
the north side and we always think  to think that we had ideas of building a recreation center on 
the property. Administrator Goldsmith noted because it is a floodplain. 
 
Commissioner Lazarski thought is was determined after, which was part of should have been the 
planning process.  But in the planning process, everything has been developed and now you the 
Board are going to start developing our parks. I think they are setting a precedent that says that 
the parks are not that important and if we need money we will sell one because it is in the middle 
of a residential area. I do think they traded off Midway Park for the property that they had 
purchased on the other side. They made that decision and that is their decision to make. We were 
disrespected like Commissioner Landsman said. 
 
Commissioner Lazarski noted that when they made that decision, also, in that whole big plan 
was to purchase other property around Community Park, which they never carried through, other 
than buy land on Adams Street. 
 
Superintendent Righton commented that there were several committees that looked at expanding 
the Community Park property, looked at finding locations in other parts of the Village, looked at 
the land over off of Madison Street, came to the conclusion that that land there was industrial 
and, therefore, was too expensive for the Village to reasonably develop it as active green space. 
We looked at other areas and there were committees in which the Commission had 
representation. These committees looked at these areas. Then the Board, after those committees 
had reached their conclusions, said it felt the best thing is to purchase the land behind the 
Willowbrook Ford and develop that as the community center along with other municipal 
facilities. That was their answer to those committees and that discussion that the Commission 
and the Board had had over the years. That was their decision to do that and their answer for the 
recommendations of those committees. Maybe not everybody on the Commission was totally 



Page 10 
Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 
 
 

happy with that but from the Staff’s perspective that was the one chance the Village would have 
to develop indoor recreation space, which was very important to the Commission and I can only 
assume it still is because what we have right here, this is our activity center (council chambers).  
It certainly is quite a bit less than what other towns have. But that is the conditions that we have 
and that was the Village Board’s response to the survey that was done, the study that was done, 
that was their response by purchasing that 3 acres and have that available some day for a 
recreation center. 
 
Commissioner Kanaverskis commented that if the Willowbrook citizen knew what was going on 
right now he thought they would be very opposed to the sale of the park. He thought if they knew 
we were selling park property to keep this Village running, he really thought they would be very 
upset.  He felt the relatively low amount of the proceeds for the park is not worth selling it. 
 
Commissioner Landsman commented that if there is a soccer team playing at the park, the people 
on the Board making the decisions doesn’t see that. Commissioner Kanaverskis asked that their 
comments are included in the minutes that will be forwarded to the Board. Chairman Cobb 
polled the Parks Commission and it was the consensus of the Commission that they were not in 
favor of selling Midway Park. 
 
Administrator Goldsmith noted that it was about eight months ago that the Commission 
formulated an opinion on the Midway Park issue and forwarded it to the Board. 
 
Commissioner Stetina thought it would be beneficial to send a memo to the Board so that they 
know the Commission is still not in favor of selling Midway Park. 
 
Administrator Goldsmith suggested that he and Superintendent Righton work on a memorandum 
to that effect forward it to Chairman Cobb for his review before it is sent to the Board. Chairman 
Cobb suggested it be forwarded to the entire Commission. 
 
Commissioner Lazarski commented that the only other thing she could think of is to let 
everybody know, the editors of the local papers to get the residents to know of it. 
 
Commissioner Landsman commented that we are just trying to save the land for the people. This 
is why we sit on the Parks Commission. We don’t get paid to sit here. 
 
Superintendent Righton noted that the Staff gets its direction from the Board. 
 
Chairman Cobb felt it is better to move our projects up if, indeed, the Board has decided to sell 
the park. 
 
Commissioner Lazarski did not understand how the other park districts get their grants.  Oak 
Brook and Burr Ridge are waiting for grants. Is it because they have the money to match? 
Superintendent Righton responded that it is because they were able to meet a certain criteria in 
terms of service just as we did when we got a grant to acquire the park and four grants for its 
development. We met the criteria, it had nothing to do if it was a park district or a park 
department. It was meeting the criteria of needs and we have put in for two grants over the last 
three years and what we had proposed, ideas we had to improve the park, didn’t meet their 
criteria. This past year we made adjustments to the application, tried to speak to the needs that 



Page 11 
Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 
 
 

according to the criteria they have they weren’t met, they were looking for other things DNR has.  
The State was looking for passive recreation areas. They are looking for there is a greater push 
for acquisition more in acquisition applications. There is no land in Willowbrook now to 
acquire. The development grants they look very critically in terms of what you are trying to 
accomplish and we did not meet those criteria. Administrator Goldsmith noted that they are 
getting more stringent as dollars are becoming fewer and fewer at the State level. It used to be 
$22 million in OSLAD grants. Now it is $9 million. There isn’t as much emphasis on the State 
level for funding those types of recreation things as not as much money is available. 
 
Superintendent Righton commented that maybe the need for bathrooms scored higher downstate 
or maybe smaller, impoverished, communities are able to score higher than some of those in 
DuPage County. We looked at what can we do to improve our grant opportunity and what we 
have is a landlocked park that has certain facilities and we are limited by space to expand them.  
Maybe a water park or a splash pad would dress it up a little bit but it probably would not have 
been enough to accomplish what we really need, which is a toilet and additional parking spaces.  
 
Chairman Cobb noted that what the Board said is that they will take care of pretty much 
everything we have asked for, for the next five years.  
 
Commissioner Landsman thought about putting in her resignation on the day they sell that park 
that was my thought. I still might do that because I feel like I am sitting here for nothing. Not 
getting the rec center built, selling off parks land without talking to the Commission. 
 
Commissioner Lazarski commented that the Board doesn’t even discuss the ideas from the Parks 
Commission. 
 
Chairman Cobb noted that when he and Commissioner Landsman started on the Commission, 
the Community Park had hardly a fence on it. In the time we have been here, from the time my 
daughter started playing to now, the softball facility has become a world class facility. If I take 
any solace from the eight years that I have sat here with the Commission, we have done 
something productive there. And that is why the money coming back to finish off that park, 
because the park is not finished. We have terrible bathrooms.  
 
Commissioner Landsman noted that there will be money coming in from the town center. 
 
Administrator Goldsmith noted that the Village will receive money as it is  generated with the 
normal lag for sales tax. 
 
Commissioner Lazarski asked if the selling of Midway Park was just a band aid until we get to 
that point. 
 
Administrator Goldsmith commented that it is to address the capital needs. 
 
Commissioner Landsman asked if the Board was going to eventually do the referendum down 
the road? 
 
Administrator Goldsmith responded that was a Board decision. 
 



Page 12 
Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 
 
 

Commissioner Landsman asked why it can’t be done right now? 
 
Chairman Cobb suggested that it is because the Board relishes in the fact that we are one of three 
communities in the whole state that doesn’t have an income tax property tax. 
 
Commissioner O’Connor asked if the Board proposed a referendum do you think it would pass. 
 
Commissioner Kanaverskis thought it would depend on what the numbers are, all the yes votes 
and the no votes. If it doesn’t pass the first time, then the second time, then the third time. At 
least you would know what your numbers are and you know where to get out and get the vote 
and if it is possible. If it is way out of line, then you know maybe it’s not the right thing to do but 
at least you know what your numbers are. 
 
Commissioner Landsman noted that the survey we did in 1998, over half the residents of 
Willowbrook supported a recreation center being built. So that in itself it can say…there are 
people that support a rec center. 
 
Superintendent Righton noted that the survey indicated that there was some support and the 
consultant had indicated that by creating a program of public information, that more support 
would be garnered. 
 
Commissioner Landsman noted that Burr Ridge educated their residents and they got it passed. 
 
Commissioner Lazarski noted that when Burr Ridge went through a referendum the first time it 
didn’t go through when they said they were selling one of their parks and then all of a sudden the 
residents got out, if we give the residents a chance to vote. 
 
9.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION: Made by Commissioner O’Connor, seconded by Commissioner Winters, to adjourn 
the regular meeting of the Parks and Recreation Commission at the hour of 9:15 p.m. 
 
UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE    MOTION DECLARED CARRIED 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTED, READ and APPROVED, 
 
    , 2005 
 
              
                         Chairman 
 
 
 
 
Minutes transcribed by Mary Partyka. 


